
BOARD 

OF 

GOVERNORS 

November 19, 2013 



Schedule/Agenda 

Meeting of the  
Pierpont Community & Technical College 

Board of Governors 

November 19, 2013 

Pierpont Center at Veteran’s Square 
320 Adams Street, Fairmont, WV 

1:30 PM Regional Academics Committee Meeting 
Pierpont Center at Veterans Square 
Executive Conference Room, Suite 402 

Members: 
Tom Stose (Chair/Faculty Representative) 
Jessica Cale (Student Representative) 
Earl McConnell 
Gene Weaver 

Staff Resource: 
Jeanie Hawkins 
Leslie Lovett 

1:30 P.M. Marketing Committee Meeting 
Pierpont Center at Veterans Square 
Suite 411 

Members: 
Sharon Shaffer - Chair 
Linda Aman 
Beverly Jones 

Staff Resource: 
Ron Weist 

2:00 PM Full Board Meeting 
Pierpont Center at Veterans Square 
Executive Conference Room, Suite 402 

Legislated purpose for Pierpont 
Community and Technical College 

H. B. 3215 – establishing community 
colleges, 18B – 3C-8 Legislative 
findings and intent 

“The primary goal of the Legislature is 
to create a statewide network of 
independently accredited community 
and technical colleges that focus on 
technical education, workforce 
training, and lifelong learning for the 
Twenty-First Century.” 

“A necessary precedent to 
accomplishing the legislative goal is to 
change the way that leaders at all 
levels of education, including 
institutional governing boards, view 
community and technical colleges. 
Specifically, that the mission of 
technical colleges is different from 
that  of traditional four-year colleges 
in what they accomplish and how they 
can achieve it effectively and that the 
state cannot compete successfully in 
today’s information-driven, 
technology-based economy if 
community and technical colleges 
continue to be viewed as add-ons or 
afterthoughts attached to 
baccalaureate institutions.” 



Pierpont Community & Technical College 
Board of Governors Meeting 

November 19, 2013 

Call to Order 

1. Opening Comment (Chairman, Earl McConnell)
2. Last Call for Public Comment Sign Up
3. Board Member Commitment Tab 1 – Informational 
4. Higher Education Acronyms Tab 2 – Informational 
5. Approval of Minutes (October 15, 2013) Tab 3 – Action Item 

Special Recognitions/Updates 

President’s Report (Dr. Doreen M. Larson) 

Operation Reports 

1. Academic Affairs (Leslie Lovett) Tab 4 – Informational 
2. Center for Workforce Education Report (Paul Schreffler)
3. Classified Staff Report (Mary Jo Rutherford)
4. Faculty Senate Report (David Beighley)
5. Student Government Report (Sean Rafferty)

Committee of the Whole 

1. Financial Report  - (CFO, Dale Bradley)
a. September 2013 Combined Financial Report Tab 5 – Informational 

2. Pathways QI Milestone Report Tab 6 – Informational 
3. Pierpont Board of Governors Delegation of Powers to the President Tab 7 – Action Item 

Committee Reports 

1. Audit/Finance Committee Report (Chair, Kyle Hamilton)
a. Request WV Code Change – Per Credit Hour Tuition Tab 8 – Action Item 

(Dr. Doreen M. Larson)
b. Amendment to President’s Contract for Cell Phone Stipend Action Item 

(Resolution will be provided at the Board meeting)
2. Regional Academics Committee Report (Chair, Tom Stose)
3. Marketing Committee Report (Chair, Sharon Shaffer)

Page 2 of 3 



New Business 

Old Business 

Public Comment 

Possible Executive Session 

________  moved pursuant to 6-9A-4(b)2A of the WV Code that the Board shall go in to 
Executive Session to discuss personnel and personnel matters, which if discussed in public might 
adversely affect the reputation of any person. 

________  moved pursuant to 6-9A-4(b)9 of the WV Code that the Board shall go into Executive 
Session to consider matters involving or affecting the purchase, sale or lease of property, 
advance construction planning, the investment of public funds or other matters involving 
commercial competition, which if made public, might adversely affect the financial or other 
interest of the state or any political subdivision. 

The Board of Governors Retreat will be held on Friday, December 6, 2013 from 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM 
– Location at the Robert H. Mollohan Center, Galliher Drive in the High Tech Corridor, Fairmont.

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities 
for learning, training, and further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote 
the economic growth of our service region and state. 

Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for 
people of north-central West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, 
responsive, workforce-related training, and quality higher education opportunities. 

Page 3 of 3 



 
Tab 
1 





 
Tab 
2 







 
Tab 

3 



Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 10 
 

PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS MEETING 

October 15, 2013 
2:00 PM 

 
MINUTES 

 
 

Notice of Meeting and Attendance  
 

A meeting of the Pierpont Community & Technical College Board of Governors was 
held on October 15, 2013, beginning at 2:00 PM at the Pierpont Center at Monongalia 
Technical Education Center.  
 
Present at the meeting were Board members:  

Chairman Earl McConnell, Linda Aman (via phone), Jim Griffin, Kyle Hamilton, Beverly 
Jones, Rick Pruitte, Sharon Shaffer, Jeff Tucker, Chip VanAlsburg (via phone), and Gene 
Weaver.   

 
Board members absent were: Jessica Cale and Tom Stose. 
 
Special guests in attendance:  Nick Fantasia 
 
President’s Cabinet members present were:  

President Doreen Larson, Dale Bradley, Steve Leach, Rob Linger, Leslie Lovett, Paul 
Schreffler, and Cyndee Sensibaugh.    

 
Faculty and staff were also in attendance. 
 
 
Call to Order and Call for Public Comment 
 

Chairman McConnell called the meeting to order and announced last call for public 
sign up for comments to the Board.  
 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 

The minutes of September 17, 2013 were presented for approval.  Sharon Shaffer 
offered a motion that the minutes of September 17, 2013 be approved, as presented.  Rick 
Pruitte seconded the motion.  All agreed.  Motion carried.  
 
 
Special Recognitions/Presentations 
 

 The Board members welcomed Mr. Nick Fantasia, representative of the 
Marion Regional Development Corporation.  The Board officially offered recognition for the 
generous donation of property that the Marion Regional Development Corporation gave to 



Pierpont Board of Governors Meeting – October 15, 2013 
 

Page 2 of 10 
 

Pierpont for use in the Petroleum Technology Associate Degree Program.  The land will be 
used for hands-on drilling training.  A formal resolution will be presented to the Board at 
this meeting to officially approve the acceptance of this generous land donation. Mr. 
Fantasia expressed his pleasure in being able to partner with Pierpont for this important 
program.  

 
 
President’s Report 
 

Dr. Larson provided an in-depth report on Pierpont programs, construction 
projects, DOL grant announcement, and budget items.   Provided below is the complete 
transcript of Dr. Larson’s report. 
 
Dr. Doreen Larson’s Report: 
 

It is such a pleasure to hold our meeting here at the new Pierpont Center at MTEC. 
You may recall that at this time last year we were scheduling tours for Board members of 
the existing steel buildings used for Mon County Schools. We were impressed, but I think 
that we can agree that this facility exceeds our initial vision. I know that the students and 
faculty utilizing the new building are happy and we look forward to continuing and 
expanding our partnerships with the Mon Board of Education 
 

I am delighted to report that the North Advanced Technology Center project 
officially launched the construction phase, as of yesterday. The contract calls for substantial 
completion within 470 days and that will be here in the blink of an eye.  
Paul Schreffler is leading the “Team ATC” of faculty and staff that will now put the final 
touches on the project and monitor the detail of construction and roll out. We have an on-
site project coordinator provided by the Chancellor’s office. Blaine McVicker is the Clerk of 
the Works and will oversee the daily progress of the project, serve as a project liaison, and 
help coordinate media coverage of benchmark achievements. 
 

The Board will be pleased to know that the initial accreditation review of the 
Pierpont Emergency Medical Services program was very positive. The official report will 
take a few months to complete, but the site team noted that the Pierpont program sets the 
standards and takes the lead in program development and implementation not only in our 
service region, but throughout the state. Tracey Corbin and Rusty Taylor are the lead 
faculty in this program and I am sure that they are now breathing a sigh of relief, but 
already making plans to expand and improve the program.  
 

On the not so bright side of things, Dale is leading a cross-campus team that is 
reviewing our current budget and developing recommendations to address the budget 
shortfall within this current year. Our fall enrollments fell below our estimates and our 
budget was already limited due to the reductions in our state appropriations. The team is 
researching all options for budget reductions along with developing new avenues for 
revenues. We have an on-line anonymous suggestion box established to collect suggestions 
for savings and revenue as well. We have recently received some grant funding that may 



Pierpont Board of Governors Meeting – October 15, 2013 
 

Page 3 of 10 
 

help in the short and longer term and we are, of course, focusing efforts on enrollment and 
recruiting.  
 

A major grant announcement was just made recently. West Virginia was successful 
in obtaining a very significant grant from the federal department of labor. The technical 
term for the grant is the Trade Adjustment Act Competitive Community College grant – call 
the T double A, C 3 T grant or just DOL grant for short. As part of the grant consortium, 
Pierpont Community and Technical College will receive $2.3 million dollars in funding over 
a 4 year period.  
 

I thought the Board would be interested in the major objectives of the grant and also 
the direct funding to Pierpont. The title of the West Virginia project is Bridging the Gap and 
the grant is referred to as the BTG grant.  
 

The overall goal of the Bridging the Gap Consortium (BTG) is to establish a culture of 
continuous improvement across consortium institutions, develop and implement enhanced 
and accelerated sector-driven career pathways, strengthen contextualized, online, blended, 
and remote academic instruction, and implement expanded and individualized student 
support strategies.  
 

Programs will award skill set certificates, certificate degrees, and associate’s 
degrees in the manufacturing and mechatronics, energy technology, information 
technology and construction fields. 
 

Simply put, the grant is focused on educating the large currently uneducated 
population in West Virginia. The intent is to reach and enroll those that are unemployed or 
under-employed - those that have never attended or even considered attending college. 
The grant will equally educate the developing industries in West Virginia as to the ability of 
community colleges to provide tailored, short-term, and flexible training that will produce 
an excellent pool of local workers.  
 

This project will bridge energy, manufacturing, information technology (IT), and 
construction trades career pathways, enhance academic instruction, and close student 
support gaps created during this period of rapid expansion, while strengthening an 
innovative Registered Apprenticeship Program (RAP) partnership and creating a culture of 
continuous improvement that will extend into the CTC system’s second decade. 
 

A major area of focus within the grant for Pierpont is energy. The primary focus of 
consortium energy programs is Marcellus Shale jobs with secondary focus on power 
generation. The community college system is establishing two new petroleum technology 
programs to meet rapidly expanding WV oil and gas middle-skill jobs demands.  
 

According to a recent report on Marcellus Shale’s impact, oil and gas extraction jobs 
increased 9.5%; related construction jobs increased 50%, and support activities such as 
excavation and well surveying increased 36% between 2008 and 2011, with 10,580 total 
sector jobs. This expansion is expected to continue with 600 to 1,000 new wells being 
drilled in 2013 and 2014. Work Force WV projects an increase of 800 workers per year 



Pierpont Board of Governors Meeting – October 15, 2013 
 

Page 4 of 10 
 

over the next 5 years with 200 students annually referred for oil and gas training. Of the 15 
key oil and gas occupations identified by Work Force WV, 12 require training beyond high 
school, but less than a 4-year degree. There also is demand for power plant technology, line 
installation/repair, and surveying jobs.  
 

A second focus for Pierpont is Information Technology. WV has a vibrant IT sector 
driven by government agencies and research, including networking, programming, 
software and application development, and cyber-security, that will grow significantly over 
the next 7 years.  
 

Overall, the grant has identified factors that are limiting the provision of needed 
workers in key sectors in West Virginia and is offering solutions to be tested and evaluated 
for best results in bolstering an educated and valued West Virginia workforce.  
The first factor identified in the grant is a current lack of skilled workers. Many employers 
participating in community outreach activities reported difficulty finding skilled workers to 
fill vacant positions. West Virginia Community Colleges identified two reasons for this 
“skills” gap. First, institutional programs vary in alignment with national standards or 
regional needs. For example, Manufacturing and IT employers want nationally-recognized 
certifications, and the state’s two major electrical distribution providers want Center for 
Energy Workforce Development (CEWD) career pathways alignment.  
 

Secondly, college instructors do not always have needed certifications, nor are they 
using the latest equipment, processes, and techniques that are required in industry. WV oil 
and gas producers, for instance, want technicians taught new drilling and production skills 
using real-world simulation in outdoor and indoor laboratories. Accessing state of the art 
equipment along with finding instructors with expertise in cutting edge processes presents 
challenges in financial and human resources for community colleges.  
 

Some specific initiatives within the grant that address the identified factors 
contributing to a lack of skilled workers are the implementation of: 
 

• New energy certificates 
• New oil and gas certificates 
• A nationally portable mechatronics certificate 
• Mobile learning applications/courses 
• A nationally portable cyber technology certificate 
• Competency-based online IT programs and courses 

 
A second factor identified in the grant was weak student support systems. Virtually all 

groups expressed concern about student support systems at community colleges. A state 
labor leader opined that institutions need to “learn their students”; a college president 
obtained state Stimulus funding to provide professional tutorial services to students; and 
Work Force WV’s Dislocated Workers Unit director stressed better career planning 
services for TAA workers.  
 

The data corroborate their concerns. The consortium’s current 6-year student 
success rate is 34%. The success rate drops to 16% for students who must start college by 



Pierpont Board of Governors Meeting – October 15, 2013 
 

Page 5 of 10 
 

taking developmental courses. In West Virginia, community college students, moreover, 
report lower-than average use of advising and counseling, according to the leading student 
engagement survey. Community colleges in WV report a 1,500 to 1 student-to-counselor 
ratio that is well below the national average. 
 
Specific initiatives funded within the grant are: 
 

• Career planning services and counseling early in a student’s college experience 
• Digital tracking of student use of career and advising services along with student-

friendly feedback material such as dashboards, progress toward degree, and 
academic standing.  

• Career mapping within business and industry sectors to illustrate career options 
that build on shorter term programs such as certificates that lead to 2-year degrees 
that then transfer into 4-year programs.  

• Provision for individual student Coaching/counseling throughout their program. 
• Provision for peer and faculty mentoring of student interns and new employees.  
• Use of early warning systems to provide intervention and help to students within 

academic terms and early in their college programs.  
 

A third factor contributing to a limited trained workforce is the lack of flexibility in 
community college courses and services. Various groups of employers, students, and 
business partners expressed frustration with the community colleges’ lack of flexibility. 
Some specific issues identified included the lack of divergence from the standard semester 
calendar, limited evening and weekend courses, and the lack of year-round course 
offerings. All of these restrictions lead to an unnecessary length of time for students to earn 
basic credentials.  
 

Other issues included a failure to adjust schedules and modes of delivery to 
accommodate workers’ needs, and the lack of avenues for students to receive credit for 
prior learning.  
 

The average WV community college student who earns an associate’s degree takes 5 
years to do so and earns 39 more credits than needed in the process. In 2011-2012, 
students earned fewer than 20% of their credits in non-traditionally formatted classes. 
 
Specific initiatives funded within the grant to address the lack of college flexibility are: 
 

• Implementation of a uniform state system for awarding credit for prior learning.  
• Offering courses within a compressed schedule and within a year-round calendar.  
• Providing developmental instruction in “accelerated” formats that include stretch 

courses and bridge programs. 
• Instituting block scheduling options  
• Developing more courses and programs that use online/blended learning  
• Developing more courses and programs that use hybrid schedules 

 
What does this grant mean for Pierpont?  



Pierpont Board of Governors Meeting – October 15, 2013 
 

Page 6 of 10 
 

 
Well, first the timing could not be better with our new programs launched in power 

and energy and the construction begun on the North Advanced Technology Center. In 
Higher Education it is not often that several plans actually converge as planned, but in the 
case of this grant and Pierpont’s priorities we were lucky.  

 
Several positions are funded for Pierpont in the grant and they include three full time 

positions, one half time position and one ¾ time position.  
 

1. An Institutional Transformation Leader – this is a ¾ position  that oversees the 
Bridging the Gap project at Pierpont 

 
2. An Advanced Manufacturing Transformation Leader – this is a full time 

position that oversees advanced manufacturing and mechatronics accelerated 
sector-driven career pathways and instructional transformations across the 
consortium.  

 
3. An Energy Program Coordinator – this is a full time position that supports 

consortium-level career pathways development and refinement, support sector 
partnership development. This person will implement those changes at his or her 
institution, including obtaining approval for program changes and creating and 
adjusting program schedules to accelerate credential attainment.   

 
4. An Advanced Manufacturing Transformation Coordinator – this is a full time 

position that supports consortium-level career pathways development and 
refinement and supports consortium-level instructional projects, including 
gateway, bridge, capstone, online, blended, and remote courses and laboratories, 
as well as instructional partnerships, and implements those changes at his or her 
institution.  

 
5. An Information Technology Program Coordinator - this is a half time position 

that supports consortium-level career pathways development, supports 
consortium-level technology projects (including prior learning assessment), and 
career planning portal development and analytics (as well as instructional 
partnerships), and implements those changes at his or her institution. 

 
Grant funding for needed support services includes $41,000 for developmental 

education coordinators providing English, reading, math, and digital literacy remediation. 
The grant also funds $26,000 for peer coaches to provide support to potential and current 
technical program students, including assisting them with enrollment, financial aid, career 
counseling, and other services.  $54,000 is provided for counselors to provide various types 
of counseling for students, including career planning, job placement, and mental health 
services.  
 

The grant also funds two digital classroom/laboratories at the North Advanced 



Pierpont Board of Governors Meeting – October 15, 2013 
 

Page 7 of 10 
 

Technology Center that will allow for collaborative technology-based learning at the 
classroom and laboratory sites and at remote sites at institutions across WV at a cost of 
$40,000 per classroom 
 

Additional equipment for the Pierpont Petroleum Technology program includes an 
energy simulations/remote laboratory funded at $296,700. Various pieces of equipment 
for indoor/outdoor petroleum technology drilling/rigging training site will be purchased 
including: 
 

• IADC-approved well simulator. 
• Boom/vertical forklift  
• Rigging/load handling training hardware  
• 2 fully functional simulators 
• Well servicing lab hardware  

 
What does Pierpont need to do? 
 

First and foremost we need to maintain our schedule of a separate Banner system 
implementation. It is obvious that the foundation of the grant and the basis of the grant 
outcomes require a student system that is tailored to workforce training, scheduled around 
business hours and industry schedules, and provides for alternative instructional delivery. 
None of these options are possible within the current university-centric Banner system. We 
also need to quickly find and hire the transformational leaders identified in the grant 
funding. Some of these positions can be filled from within and some will require recruiting 
and hiring new talent.  
 

Within the next few weeks, Pierpont will be engaged in a series of grant trainings 
and information sessions hosted by the Department of Labor, the Chancellor’s office, and 
within Pierpont divisions.  
 

We are excited and overwhelmed at the same time. This grant represents a major 
shift in program delivery that will challenge community colleges that operate with full 
autonomy. The grant requirements and promised outcomes are that much more daunting 
for Pierpont given our currently shared status with FSU. We hope that the funding and this 
support from the state and the federal department of labor will provide further momentum 
and validation for our efforts to fulfill the vision and promised benefits of a separate and 
independent community college system in West Virginia.  
 
End. 
 
 
Operation Reports 
 
 Leslie Lovett provided a report on Academic Affairs 
 Paul Schreffler presented the Center for Workforce Education Report 
 Mary Jo Rutherford provided the Classified Staff Report 
 Michael Waide presented the Faculty Senate Report 



Pierpont Board of Governors Meeting – October 15, 2013 
 

Page 8 of 10 
 

 No Student Government Report was given 
 
 
Committee of the Whole 

 
 Financial Report 

 
Dale Bradley provided the report on the Pierpont Community & Technical College 

Unrestricted and Restricted Funds and Fund Manager Budgets for the current budget 
and year-to-date actual as of August 31, 2013. A complete summary was provided in the 
October 15, 2013 Board of Governors book.  
 

 Construction Projects Progress Report 
 

Stephanie Slaubaugh provided an update on the FY 2014 capital projects completion 
progress.  A complete summary of the report was provided in the October 15, 2013 
Board of Governors book. 
 

 
Committee Reports 
 
 Audit/Finance Committee 

Kyle Hamilton, Committee Chair, provided the Audit/Finance Committee Report. 
 

A. Acceptance of Marion Regional Development Corporation Land Donation 
 

A resolution was brought before the Board to approve the 
donation/purchase of 18.79 acres +/-   in the southeastern-most portion of the 
Marion Regional Business Park from MRDC for the purchase price of $10, subject 
to a satisfactory Phase One Environmental Survey.   
 

This donation will provide the necessary land for Pierpont to deliver hands-
on training for various drilling related activities for the Petroleum Technology 
Associate Degree Program.  

 
Jim Griffin moved to approve the resolution to acceptance of the MRDC 

donation of property to be used as a training site for the Petroleum Technology 
Program.  Kyle Hamilton seconded the motion.  All agreed.  Motion carried.  
 

B. Approval of FY 2014 Capital Projects 
 

Three capital projects that impact both Pierpont and FSU consisting of 
campus wide small projects, academic funds, and landscaping were discussed 
and agreed upon in a joint Finance Committee meeting by and between Pierpont 
and FSU. 
 



Pierpont Board of Governors Meeting – October 15, 2013 
 

Page 9 of 10 
 

It was recommended to provide the Physical Plant and the Provosts funding 
to deal with life safety issues and small projects. Each institution’s 
administration and Finance Committee agree that these projects should move 
forward at this time, while funding for larger repair and maintenance projects 
are still under discussion.  

 
A resolution was presented for approval that the Board should allow 

$397,000 in FY 2014 Capital Project budget, consisting of $197,000 for campus 
wide small projects, $100,000 for the campus wide academic fund, and $100,000 
for campus wide landscaping.  

 
Kyle Hamilton moved to approve $397,000 in FY 2014 Capital Project Budget 

to move forward in funding projects for campus wide small projects, academic 
funds, and landscaping.  Jim Griffin seconded the motion. All agreed.  Motion 
carried.  
 
 

 Off Campus/Regional Academics Committee Report 
 
No Report. 

 
 Marketing Committee Report 

 
No Report.  

 
 
Public Comment 
 

No signatures were recorded. 
 
 
New Business 
 

No new business discussed. 
 
Old Business 
 

President Larson reminded the Board about the WVCCA/WVADA 2013 
Annual Conference to be hosted by Pierpont Community & Technical College on 
October 23-25, 2013 at the Bridgeport Conference Center in Bridgeport, WV, and 
encouraged everyone to attend.  Information on the Conference was provide in the 
August 20, 2013 Board Book.   

 
 
Executive Session 
 
No Executive Session called.  



Pierpont Board of Governors Meeting – October 15, 2013 
 

Page 10 of 10 
 

 
 

Adjournment and Next Meeting 
 
There being no further business, Jim Griffin made a motion to adjourn.  Beverly Jones 
seconded the motion. All Agreed. The Board meeting was adjourned at 3:13 PM.   
 
The next Pierpont Board of Governors Meeting will be held on Tuesday, November 19, 
2013 at 2:00 PM at the Robert C. Byrd Aerospace Education Center. 
 



 
Tab 
4 



PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOG ACADEMIC AFFAIRS REPORT NOVEMBER 19, 2013 

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities for learning, training and 

further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote the economic growth of our service region and 

state. Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for people of North Central 

West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, responsive, workforce-related training and quality 

higher education opportunities.  Page 1 
 

ACADEMIC AFFAIRS BOARD OF GOVERNORS REPORT 

UPDATE ON ANNUAL STRATEGIC PLAN ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

School of Academic Studies 

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 

Dr. Ray Mainenti, DEAN 

 

HLC ACCREDITATION 

1. Dr. Ray Mainenti and Linda King serve on the Criterion 3 Committee, Nancy Parks chairs 

Criterion 4, Ironda Campbell serves on Criterion 5, and David Beighley serves on Criterion 2 

and 4. 

2. The Coordinators of Math and English have distributed the Pierpont syllabus template to their 

respective faculty and adjuncts.  We plan to have all Academic Studies Courses use the common 

template by the beginning of Spring 2014. 

INSTITUTIONAL FLEXIBILITY 

1. Dr. Mainenti and Professor Debra Benedetti are exploring a more streamlined approach to 

developmental English and are in the process of writing a curriculum proposal.  If the issues with 

the registrar and Banner, etc. can be resolved, they hope to launch the program in Fall 2014.  

Details to come later. 

2. Debra Benedetti, Linda King, and James Savchuk are traveled to Louisville, KY for the annual 

conference of the Community College Humanities Association (CCHA) to present the creation 

of the new Pierpont literature course, Humanities 2200: Bridging Cultures: Work & Identity from 

a Global Perspective. 

3. As the separation between institutions progresses, the School of Academic Studies is 

exploring options (courses and faculty) to provide Pierpont students with additional general 

education courses noted on the State Core Transfer List staffed by Pierpont faculty (Literature, 

Written English II, Fundamentals of Math and College Algebra, History and other social 

sciences, Mass Communications, Experiencing the Arts, etc).. The School will begin scheduling 

courses designated as “Pierpont only” to prepare for the separate data base and to help students 

identify more closely to the institution in which they are enrolled. This should help tuition  



PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOG ACADEMIC AFFAIRS REPORT NOVEMBER 19, 2013 

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities for learning, training and 

further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote the economic growth of our service region and 

state. Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for people of North Central 

West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, responsive, workforce-related training and quality 

higher education opportunities.  Page 2 
 

 

resources and possibly reduce the need for additional faculty and/or adjuncts in the near future. 

Math and English are also looking to consolidate courses with duplicate outcomes. 

4. As a result of current and future budget reductions, Dr. Larson and Dr. Mainenti have 

discussed issues and made some plans concerning the operation of the School of Academic 

Studies moving forward, especially as it concerns faculty, course offerings, tutoring, etc. 

5. Math 1106 curriculum proposal is in committee.  The next step is to embed the developmental 

outcomes into our general education courses. 

(Order of Priority highest to lowest) 

Math 1106  Math for Health Careers, Math 1003  Applied Math for Industry, Math 1100  

Intermediate Algebra, Math 1104  Mathematics in Business 

Joelleen Bidwell Math Coordinator is meeting with program coordinators to assess the modules 

needed for programs only requiring a developmental math competency and to determine in 

which quantitative core course to place the modules. 

6. Good reports from students and faculty have been received about Amanda Barber, the new 

Instructional Specialist, who staffs the Academic Studies Math Lab. 

CULTURE OF COMPLETION 

1. Peer & Professional Tutoring Attendance Update (includes both Pierpont and FSU students): 

Accommodations-  11 students  20 visits  15 hours 

Math Lab 200 Jaynes Hall - 342 visits with 1356 sign-ins  1918 Hours  

Peer tutoring-   111 students with 257 sign-ins 339 hours 

Professional Tutoring Math- 117 students with 336 visits    468 hours 

Professional Tutoring English- 112 Students 260 Visits 284 Hours 

For Peer tutoring top requests are-  Chemistry, Accounting, INFO1100, MATH 1107, 1115, 0080  

Professional Math tutoring top requests are-  MATH 0080, 1101, 1102, 1106, 1107, 1115 

Professional English tutoring top requests are- ENGL 0097, 1104, 1108, Writing all levels 

 



PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOG ACADEMIC AFFAIRS REPORT NOVEMBER 19, 2013 

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities for learning, training and 

further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote the economic growth of our service region and 

state. Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for people of North Central 

West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, responsive, workforce-related training and quality 

higher education opportunities.  Page 3 
 

 

2.  BOG Degree 

The program has captured three graduates for December graduation from meetings with 

Liberal Studies/General students. All August grads are sent a letter of congratulations, 

along with tips as to how to market the BOG in job interviews. 

Pierpont granted an August diploma to an out-of-state student after working with the 

State and amending on this case the college's transfer policy for grades.  In this case, the 

student's actual letter grades were transferred in to be used to bolster his GPA to 

graduation-eligible status.  This BOG academic case is triggering a review of Pierpont's 

policy on transferring in out-of-state credits. 

The Liberal Studies/General PIN list makes up 26% of all students on the Pierpont PIN 

list.  There are 2353 students on Pierpont's PIN list this week, and over 600 are Lib 

Studies/General which are handled primarily by Nancy Parks, Director of Advising, Assessment 

and Testing, until additional staff come aboard, with support by School of Academic Studies. 

THIRTEEN COUNTY OUTREACH 

FACILITIES 

1. A tentative date of Spring Break 2014 for work to begin on remodeling 203 JH to create two 

computer labs, will add much needed computer classroom space for courses.  Some equipment 

has arrived, and consultation with Capitol Business Interiors on furniture options has begun. 

2. Nancy Parks, Director of Testing, Assessment & Advising, has relocated in 201Hardway Hall. 

Advising is now in a more central location for Pierpont students. Jaynes Hall 213 will be used as  

office space for Academic Studies faculty, at least in the short term. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOG ACADEMIC AFFAIRS REPORT NOVEMBER 19, 2013 

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities for learning, training and 

further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote the economic growth of our service region and 

state. Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for people of North Central 

West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, responsive, workforce-related training and quality 

higher education opportunities.  Page 4 
 

 

School of Business, Aviation 

& Technology 

DR. Jerry Bacza, DEAN 

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES: 

2013 – 2014 GOALS 
 

2013-2014 FOCUS 
 

 Achieve full HLC reaccreditation 

o Achieve ATMAE reaccreditation 

 Host successful WVADE/WVCCA conference 

o Worked with Martina Bachlechner on our conference presentation. Met with 

Mary Stewart and Dana Keith from WVNET to integrate analytics to advise 

students to take the on-line preparatory science class. 

 

HLC ACCREDITATION 

 

1. Plan and complete successful site visit 

Working with Nancy Parks on Criterion 4 for examples in these areas: 

 if and how your programs award credit to students for prior learning experiences:  

 if and how  your programs give students the opportunity to transfer work 

experiences into college credits;  

 if and how your programs provide opportunities for students to test out of courses; 

 the dual-credit courses (college in the high schools) offered through your 

programs 

 proof your faculty have credentials appropriate/applicable to their teaching field; 

 any accreditation affiliations your programs have; 

 how you evaluate "success" of your graduates and how you track your graduates 

 how you assess student work and make changes to your programs based on what 

you've learned from those assessments 

 how your programs work to retain students and keep them in school until they 

graduate.   

 If your program has undertaken any special retention efforts, now is the time to 

share. 

2. Improve academic quality/consistent course content 

 Distributed the common syllabus from the Provost’s Office to all BAT faculty to 

begin the implementation process FOR Spring 2014. Adjunct will be sent a master 

syllabus to keep all courses consistent. 



PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOG ACADEMIC AFFAIRS REPORT NOVEMBER 19, 2013 

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities for learning, training and 

further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote the economic growth of our service region and 

state. Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for people of North Central 

West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, responsive, workforce-related training and quality 

higher education opportunities.  Page 5 
 

 

3. Complete required notifications and documentation needed for new programs and on-

going program revisions 

 Working with the Director of the NAEC to reorganize the flight program 

 

INSTITUTIONAL FLEXIBILITY 
 

1. Investigate and evaluate tools for the assessment of readiness for online learning 

 Recruiting more BAT faculty members to attend QM training for on-line course 

development 

 

CULTURE OF COMPLETION 

1. Pilot early alert and attendance tracking programs 

 Dean Bacza is working with the BAT Coordinators on student attendance and 

intervention techniques. 

 

THIRTEEN COUNTY OUTREACH 

1. Develop long range program plan for MTEC expansion facility 

 Working with Dean Hawkins, Professor Oliver and Professor Davis about 

program development at MTEC 

 

FACILITIES 

1. Clarify and establish long term plan for Pierpont at Caperton and RCBNAEC 

 Met with Nancy McClure, Deb Barker, Nancy Lawler, Jim Davis and Nancy 

Lawler to discuss long range Business Technology plans for our off site locations. 

2. Working on a plan to fund the purchase of computers to upgrade the CAD lab and 

Graphics lab√. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOG ACADEMIC AFFAIRS REPORT NOVEMBER 19, 2013 

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities for learning, training and 

further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote the economic growth of our service region and 

state. Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for people of North Central 

West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, responsive, workforce-related training and quality 

higher education opportunities.  Page 6 
 

 

School of Health Careers 

Strategic Priorities Report 

dean Rosemarie Romesburg, 

Ph.D., MT (ASCP), Dean & MLT 

Program Coordinator    
    

 

2013-14 FOCUS  

1. The School of Health Careers established as one of its goals, "Support successful 

completion of HLC accreditation". Goal leaders are Jeffrey Lawson, Ph.D. and 

Rosemarie Romesburg, Ph.D. Nancy Parks is attending the October 18 School meeting to 

discuss HLC Criterion 4.  

2. Several faculty are planning to attend the WVCCA/WVADE Annual Conference.  

HLC ACCREDITATION 

1. Faculty in The School of Health Careers have been working towards successful 

completion of HLC accreditation by assessing courses and programs and utilizing 

common syllabi and assessment in course sections.  

2. Under the leadership of Vickie Findley, MPA, RHIA, all sections of HLCA Medical 

Terminology currently utilize the same standard syllabus with some common 

assessments. The course has achieved Quality Matters status.  

INSTITUTIONAL FLEXIBILITY 

1. Beverly Born, Ed.D updated the Radiologic Technology website with input from Jay 

Morris, WVUH Rad Tech Program Coordinator and Rosemary Trupo, UHC Rad Tech 

Program Coordinator.  

2. The Phlebotomy Skill Set was offered in two 8 week sessions for the first time this Fall. 

Students enrolled in these two sessions will be able to complete the entire skill set within 

the Fall semester. The first 8 week session has been completed and students are now 

participating in phlebotomy clinical experiences.  This scheduling will be offered again in 

the Spring.  

 

 

 



PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOG ACADEMIC AFFAIRS REPORT NOVEMBER 19, 2013 

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities for learning, training and 

further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote the economic growth of our service region and 

state. Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for people of North Central 

West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, responsive, workforce-related training and quality 

higher education opportunities.  Page 7 
 

CULTURE OF COMPLETION 

1. The Academic Dishonesty Policy developed by the School of Health Careers under the 

leadership of Tina Sager, Ph.D. was approved and adopted for the college by the Faculty 

Senate during the September 2013 meeting, and is posted in the Academic Affairs Syllabi 

Statements link. 

2. The Attendance Policy developed and adopted by the School of Health Careers under the 

leadership of Sherri Craddock, M.S., MLS (ASCP) was implemented for Fall 2013 for all 

programs within the School. The policy has been sent to Admissions and Credits for 

discussions involving a college wide attendance policy.  

3. Two high schools, Braxton and Grafton, are offering early entry enrollment for HLCA 

1100 Medical Terminology. 

THIRTEEN COUNTY OUTREACH 

 Enrollments and FTEs have been increased at the Braxton County Regional Academic 

Facility with the admission of a second cohort of LPN students. Health careers programs 

being offered include Phlebotomy Advanced Skill Set, Laboratory Assistant Certificate 

of Applied Science and Licensed Practical Nurse Certificate of Applied Science.  

 Broadband Internet capabilities have been enhanced at the Braxton facility and are 

working satisfactorily.  

FACILITIES 

1.   A meeting is scheduled for November 15 to discuss planning for the ATC.  All faculty  

 from the School of Health Careers who will be teaching at the ATC have been invited to  

      attend.  

2. Space and expansion for the Vet Tech program is a continuing area of concern.  Updates 

to the kennels require more immediate attention.  Vet Tech will be providing a plan to the 

Facility Committee.   

 

OTHER SCHOOL PRIORITIES 

The following faculty are serving as goal leaders for the School of Health Careers:  

Goal 1:  Drs. Lawson and Romesburg - Support successful completion of HLC accreditation  

Goal 2:  Vickie Findley - Improve retention, certification and graduation rates 

Goal 3:  Stephanie Jordan and Jodee Nelson - Enhance recruitment activities 

Goal 4:  Dr. Born, Amy Cunningham, Michael. Waide - Explore the development of a Health 

Careers Pathways degree or curriculum 

Goal 5:  Emily Ryan and Melissa White - Offer clinical faculty incentives  



PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOG ACADEMIC AFFAIRS REPORT NOVEMBER 19, 2013 

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities for learning, training and 

further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote the economic growth of our service region and 

state. Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for people of North Central 

West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, responsive, workforce-related training and quality 

higher education opportunities.  Page 8 
 

 

School of Human Services 

Strategic Initiative Alignment 

& Updates- dean brian floyd 

 

SCHOOL GOALS 
 

INSTITUTIONAL FLEXIBILITY 

 

       1. Investigate and evaluate tools for the assessment of readiness for online learning 

Barbara Alvarez and Susan Coffindaffer are working on this through their course 

applications.  Beth Newcome is investigating a broader online presence for our School. 

 

THIRTEEN COUNTY OUTREACH 

 

1. Develop long range program plan for MTEC expansion facility 

APPD offered a course at MTEC for fall of 2013 in an effort to expand the offering and 

assist with this expansion. Enrollment has been disappointing. Efforts will continue to 

offer APPD classes at MTEC as determined by the regional academics plan. 

 

Early Childhood has been collaborating with Linda Cronin and MTEC to develop a plan 

where the 18 hour EC Skill Set certificate will begin with courses that are currently 

approved as EDGE credits then after completion of these, the student will transition to 

Pierpont and complete the remaining hours on the MTEC campus, taking regional 

courses offered there. (Linda will work with with Jeani Hawkins and the Provost in order 

to coordinate the sequencing of the EC courses.) 

 

2. Centrally plan and coordinate county outreach efforts 

APPD is participating in the promotional program as a partner with Meadowbrook Mall. 

The first meeting of FAB (Fashion Advisory Board) which is a group of 10 high school 

students from regional high schools interested in careers in the fashion/design business 

has occurred. Pierpont has earmarked two $1000 scholarships for select students 

involved in FAB that enroll in the Pierpont/APPD program. The APPD program will be 

involved with this group of high school students and their activities over the year. This is 

an opportunity to recruit and promote Pierpont through the Mall's promotional 

campaign associated with program throughout the year. 

 

 

 

 



PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOG ACADEMIC AFFAIRS REPORT NOVEMBER 19, 2013 

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities for learning, training and 

further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote the economic growth of our service region and 

state. Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for people of North Central 

West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, responsive, workforce-related training and quality 

higher education opportunities.  Page 9 
 

 

CULTURE OF COMPLETION 
 

1. Initiate credit and non-credit blended courses for targeted customers 

EMS with the development of a first responder curriculum will allow our department to 

offer this course both as credit and non-credit.  A document I sent to workforce) outlines 

all courses that could be offered as both credit and noncredit.   

 

2. Facilitate internal ‘articulation agreements’ between credit and non-credit programs to 

provide educational services to the regional workforce 

Working on an articulation agreement for many EMS certificate classes to be able to 

receive credit for completion This will meet the needs of the workforce and industry by 

having both credit and non-credit availability of courses. 

 

FACILITIES 

 

1. Establish practices and procedures for separate Pierpont locations using the Veterans’ 

Square facility as a pilot 

The APPD program has faced (and is facing) major challenges with the program move to 

VS. As a remote site, lack of traditional campus services has posed some issues for both 

faculty and students. The only ways to address many of these issues is to travel back and 

forth to Locust Ave. campus. This is not only time consuming, but causes a delay and 

general inconvenience. Solutions for daily processes have been found and the program is 

working out issues. Typical services with issues are: Mail service, physical plant and / or 

routine maintenance, printing services, Blackboard support and IT that must still be 

provided by FSU, no direct secretarial support for daily office operation, student services 

i.e. registrar, financial aid. The issue of student access to the Falcon Center has not been 

resolved. Immediate and direct access to FAX and scanner is critical. We are addressing 

these issues and attempting to find solutions. 

 

2. Review plans for ongoing auxiliary services, such as maintenance, janitorial, mail, 

library/resource access, and catering; and review plans for back office services.  

A discussion for planning of auxiliary services of importance and essential services is a 

must in the Facilities Plan. Reliance on contractors to do specific jobs and provide 

services should be considered. Development of Centers should be in the vision of a 

community college "with a vending machine" like most other community colleges. Strong 

and reliable vendors and contractors are viable ways to cut costs and provide services as 

needed. The VS expansion site can be used to demonstrate how this model of physical 

space can be utilized for primary instruction, with minimal auxiliary services. 

 

 

 

 



PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOG ACADEMIC AFFAIRS REPORT NOVEMBER 19, 2013 

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities for learning, training and 

further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote the economic growth of our service region and 

state. Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for people of North Central 

West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, responsive, workforce-related training and quality 

higher education opportunities.  Page 10 
 

 

HLC ACCREDITATION  

 
1. Improve academic quality/consistent course content 

All Human Services programs are moving toward the common syllabi for Spring 2014.  

Program Coordinators are coordinating texts, course outcomes, and assessments. 

 

The Dean visited with all programs throughout the month of October: 

 Reviewing curriculum 

 Reviewing budgets 

 Discussing accreditation programmatic and institutional 

 Short and long range facility planning 

 Discussing partnerships and articulation opportunities 

 Discussing recruiting efforts 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOG ACADEMIC AFFAIRS REPORT NOVEMBER 19, 2013 

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities for learning, training and 

further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote the economic growth of our service region and 

state. Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for people of North Central 

West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, responsive, workforce-related training and quality 

higher education opportunities.  Page 11 
 

 

REGIONAL ACADEMICS strategic priorities 

DR. Jeani Hawkins, Dean       
 

HLC ACCREDITATION 
 Make certain that regional areas are in compliance in all aspects - ongoing 

o Check course syllabi more closely to make sure regional adjuncts have 

consistent course content as provided by the appropriate department - 

ongoing 

 Successfully submit Assurance File data and criterion reports – ongoing 

o Criterion 3 co-chairs met to discuss items that will bring our project closer 

to completion.  Brad Gilbert and I have scheduled a meeting Dean 

Mainenti, Barbara Alvarez, and Linda King to move forward.  

  

13-COUNTY OUTREACH 
 Complete plan for Regional course shift to Pierpont  

o  implementing changes as they are made by the curriculum committee 

 Implement the North Central WV CTE/CTC Consortium plan  

o Linda Cronin is our coordinator and will continue to work to develop a 

unified plan between Pierpont and the service area Career Technical 

Centers to meet the needs of workforce development through cooperative 

programs. 

 Regional Academics met with AVP Jennifer Weist et al in planning for Welcome 

Wednesday (WW).  WW will tentatively be held at MTEC on the third 

Wednesday of November and December and in Lewis County on first 

Wednesday of November and December. 

 Regional Academics met with School of BAT Dean Bacza, Assistant Dean, 

Nancy Lawler, Dr. Nancy McClure and the Provost to proficiently coordinate 

business course offerings throughout our service area. 

 Regional Academics participated in College Exploration Week.  Joyce Lamb 

served as Lewis County Site Coordinator to assist potential college students with 

the college application and process by using the www.cfwv.com web site.  

 Regional Academics participated in the Lewis County Homecoming Parade 

along with Monty the mascot. 

 

FACILITIES 

 Currently reviewing and clarifying security and fire evacuation plans, including 

communications, for all locations – getting copies of room schematics, 

addressed, security and fire evacuation plans for each site, to be followed by 

review at the institutional administration and Campus Safety level, and to then 

roll out to the  site coordinators, faculty, students and staff.  
 

http://www.cfwv.com/


PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOG ACADEMIC AFFAIRS REPORT NOVEMBER 19, 2013 

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities for learning, training and 

further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote the economic growth of our service region and 

state. Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for people of North Central 

West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, responsive, workforce-related training and quality 

higher education opportunities.  Page 12 
 

 

School of Workforce Development 

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES: 2013-14 

Mr. Paul Schreffler, Dean 

 

2013-2013 FOCUS 
 

 Implement the North Central WV Consortium plan 

o Attended Program of Study meetings with key stakeholders in regard to 

Mechatronics, Power and Energy, Petroleum Technology and Advanced Welding 

projects 

 Work out the kinks in independent Pierpont locations 

o Participated in completed project plan for initial move to VTS 

 Host successful WVADE/WVCCA conference 

o Key staff participated in planning and execution for conference 

 Begin to blend credit and non-credit curriculum and services 

o Staff from CE and school faculty are integrating their work to achieve credit and 

noncredit goals, the recent Crosby land-based rigging course illustrates this 

activity 

 

HLC ACCREDITATION 
 

Plan and complete successful site visit 

 Improve academic quality/consistent course content 

a. Met with faculty to discuss Criterion Four content 

b. Faculty have integrated course content from multiple programs into ENRG 

courses 

 

INSTITUTIONAL FLEXIBILITY 

 
Establish selected Pierpont student services staff and space for credit and non-credit students 

.1   Investigate and evaluate tools for the assessment of readiness for online learning 

1. CE Director of Operations has investigated assessment tools, prepared 

presentation for WVCCA/WVADE conference 

 

CULTURE OF COMPLETION 
 Initiate credit and non-credit blended courses for targeted customers 

a. Investigating appropriate areas for content delivery 

 Facilitate internal ‘articulation agreements’ between credit and non-credit programs to 

provide educational services to the regional workforce 

a. Researching models for this at other institutions 



PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOG ACADEMIC AFFAIRS REPORT NOVEMBER 19, 2013 

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities for learning, training and 

further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote the economic growth of our service region and 

state. Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for people of North Central 

West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, responsive, workforce-related training and quality 

higher education opportunities.  Page 13 
 

THIRTEEN COUNTY OUTREACH  
 No updates  

 

FACILITIES 
 

 Complete final planning and funding for operation of ATC to begin in July 2015. 

a. Meeting with faculty and architectural team on Nov. 15 

b. Researching economic impact for dissemination to targeted stakeholders and the 

community at large 

c. Identifying details for marketing plan 

d. Reviewing final plans and specifications 

e. Researching operational cost details 

f. Seeking clarification on IT and other infrastructure 

g. Assembling industry advisory committee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOG ACADEMIC AFFAIRS REPORT NOVEMBER 19, 2013 

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities for learning, training and 

further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote the economic growth of our service region and 

state. Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for people of North Central 

West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, responsive, workforce-related training and quality 

higher education opportunities.  Page 14 
 

 

OFFICE OF ACADEMIC AFFAIRS 

PROGRESS TOWARD PIERPONT STRATEGIC 

PRIORITIES: 2013-14 

 

2013-2014 FOCUS 
 

 Achieve full HLC reaccreditation 

 Decrease number of “undeclared” students 

 Work out the kinks in independent Pierpont locations 
 

HLC ACCREDITATION  

 

 Plan and complete successful site visit 

Securing rooms for site visit events during November, hotel and campus rooms. HB 202 

turned into a file and meeting room to seat 8-10. 

 Improve academic quality/consistent course content 

a. Common syllabus template distributed to faculty. HLCA 1100, PTA syllabi, ENGL 

1104, 1108, 1109, and HUMN 2200 evidenced as completed. 

b.  Plan for roll out to Regional Academics for Pierpont owned courses. Working with 

TLC for roll out into Blackboard when master syllabi are complete. 

c. Request for Quality Matters participants in statewide Grant to improve on-line course 

quality. Sent affirmative to participate in the grant (HEPC submission by R. Humbert) 

 Finish QI project 

Report turned in October 31, team met weekly mid-September – October (David 

Beighley, Joelleen Bidwell, Linda King, Leslie Lovett, Nancy Parks). 

 Successfully submit Assurance File data and criterion reports 

Continuing to collect evidence, create files and refine report. 

 Complete required notifications and documentation needed for new programs and on-

going program revisions 

Written documentation/notification given to HLC for Petroleum CAS, and information 

entered and written documentation given to Financial Aid Director to submit to USDOE. 

 Complete required notifications and documentation needed for new locations. 

Information given to HLC and USDOE concerning Merchant Street, Veteran’s Square 

and the Atrium. 

 Cohort 2 trip to IL Nov 19-22, David Beighley, Nancy Parks, Dr. Larson and Leslie 

Lovett. 

 

 

 



PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOG ACADEMIC AFFAIRS REPORT NOVEMBER 19, 2013 

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities for learning, training and 

further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote the economic growth of our service region and 

state. Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for people of North Central 

West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, responsive, workforce-related training and quality 

higher education opportunities.  Page 15 
 

 

INSTITUTIONAL FLEXIBILITY 
 

 Establish selected Pierpont student services staff and space for credit and non-credit 

students 

230 HB is now the location for student services including admissions, recruiting, 

Associate VP for Student Services, and the Pride Guides. 200 HB is the location for 

WIA/TAA Office, and Linda Cronin, with 201 HB the new office for Nancy Parks 

Director of Admission, Assessment and Testing. 248 HB may be ready after 

Thanksgiving for move in.   

A Career Counselor has been hired and Administrative assistant for Student Services. A 

second search for an advising counselor is at the “review of applicants” stage. 

 Keep the new Pierpont Banner instance on track for Jan. 2015 implementation 

The new Student Services Administrative Assistant is training on Banner. Banner release 

is close for test.  

 Investigate and evaluate tools for the assessment of readiness for online learning 

a. Vickie Findley has agreed to be the new WVVLN Council representative in 

addition to the Provost serving on the Council 

b. Web site link to WVVLN best practices released to faculty.  

 

CULTURE OF COMPLETION 
 

 Implement Degree Works auto-graduation, auto-program of study, and auto-progress 

systems. 

AVP for Student Services continues to work on this initiative 

 Complete initiatives to reduce number of “undeclared” students  

Director of Advising, Assessment and Testing is working with the General – Liberal 

Studies students to discover their goals for entry into Pierpont. A high number are 

interested in getting their GPA up and getting back to FSU or additional 4 yr institutions. 

To help with the sheer volume of students, a temporary advisor is being hired and should 

begin next week, while the Advising Counselor position is being re-advertised. 

 Launch a Pierpont advising center that integrates career and placement services 

Selection of Career Counselor is complete (see other notations above). 

 

THIRTEEN COUNTY OUTREACH 
 

 Increase Regional Academic and CTE enrollment events 

Welcome Wednesdays to begin in November, hosted at various sites and supported by 

student services, and regional academics. 

 Develop long range program plan for MTEC expansion facility 

Exploring BA Pathways through WVU as a strategy for MTEC marketing and 

programing. 



PIERPONT COMMUNITY & TECHNICAL COLLEGE 

BOG ACADEMIC AFFAIRS REPORT NOVEMBER 19, 2013 

The Mission of Pierpont Community & Technical College is to provide opportunities for learning, training and 

further education that enrich the lives of individuals and promote the economic growth of our service region and 

state. Pierpont Community & Technical College strives to enhance the quality of life for people of North Central 

West Virginia through accessible, affordable, comprehensive, responsive, workforce-related training and quality 

higher education opportunities.  Page 16 
 

 

Interpreter Training/sign language faculty visited the facility with ideas to grow the 

program at that location (discussion phases) 

 Centrally plan and coordinate county outreach efforts 

Implement the North Central WV CTE/CTC Consortium plan 

Attended Program of Study meetings with key stakeholders in regard to Mechatronics 

(9/27) 

First TAACCCT grant meeting, strategies, for overlap in grant mission with strategic 

priorities (10/18), and two webinars have been attended (Oct 21, Nov 6) 

 

 

FACILITIES 
 

 Develop planning for Vet Tech and EMS space solutions/expansion 

EMS modifications have been reviewed by physical plant with plan to renovate  existing 

space into useable space at low cost.  

 



 
Tab 
5 



Pierpont BOG – November 19, 2013 – September 30, 2013 Finance Report  Page 1 
 

Board of Governors 

Financial Report FY 2014 

Pierpont Community & Technical College 

as of September 30, 2013 

SUMMARY: 

The projected effect on net assets for FY 2014 as of September 30, 2013 is an increase of 

$85,660.  However, this amount also includes a Board approved spend down of $373,296 in cash 

reserves which is a reduction of net assets, therefore the adjusted projected effect on assets at 

June 30, 2014 is an decrease of ($287,636). 

UNRESTRICTED OPERATING FUNDS: 

The Budget Balance as of September 30, 2013 is $76,822.  This represents a budget increase of 

$8,838 from the August 31, 2013 Financial Report.  As of this report date, approximately 45% of 

projected tuition and fees revenue and approximately 37 % of overall revenues have been 

realized while approximately 10% of operating expenses have been incurred.  The primary 

budget changes that impacted the budget from the August 31, 2014 Report, are as follows: 

 Operating Revenues Budget: 

o Increased by $799.  The significant activities accounting for this change are as 

follows: 

 The “Support Services Revenue” budget controlled by the President 

increased by $799.  This is the result of the transfer of labor budget 

from an adjunct position to a temporary position. 

 Operating Expenses Budget: 

o Decreased by ($8.040).  The significant activities accounting for this change are 

as follows: 

 The “Benefits” expense budget controlled by the President increased by 

($7,822) due to PEIA updates to full time employees and vacant 

positions. 

 The “Supplies and Other Services” expense budget controlled by the 

Fund Managers increased by $10,800 to cover the travel costs for an 

trip to Italy by faculty in the Early Childhood Program.  This trip occurred 

and had been approved in last fiscal year, but for a variety of reason had 

yet to be paid until last month. 

 The “Assessment for Support Services” expense budget controlled by 

the President decreased by ($15,852) due to the transfer of budgets 

from supplies to labor and the result of PEIA updates to full time 

employees and vacant positions.   

 Transfers & Others 

o Increased by $10,800.  This was due to the following change: 

 The “One Time Use of Reserves” controlled by the Fund Managers 

increased by $10,800 to cover the costs of the trip to Italy in the 

previous fiscal year by the Early Childhood Program Faculty.  This use of 

reserves had been approved by the Board Finance and Audit Committee 



Pierpont BOG – November 19, 2013 – September 30, 2013 Finance Report  Page 2 
 

in FY 2013, but for a variety of reason had yet to be paid until last 

month.  

 

Of the adjusted projected effect on net assets of an increase of $85,660 as of June 30, 2014; 

President’s Controlled Fund(s) are projected to have a budget surplus of $85,660; Fund 

Manager’s Controlled Fund(s) are projected to have a balanced budget with Board approved 

spending of $373,296 in cash reserves.  The Year-To-Date Actual Budget Balance is $4,398,785.   

 

RESTRICTED FUNDS: 

The Budget Balance as of September 30, 2013 is $1,024.  This represents a decreased of 

($20,688) from the August 31, 2013 report which is primarily due to corrective action related to 

deferred entries updated for the FY 2013 Audit.  Late accounts payable entries in FY 13 were 

identified while completing the FY 2013 audit process.  The corrective action required reducing 

the FY 2014 revenue budget since cash to cover the accounts payable was moved from Deferred 

Revenue to Revenue in FY 2013.  Revenue from Deferred Revenue must be recognized in the 

year in which the expense occurred.   



Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current

Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Tuition and Fees 10,051,808 9,828,635 4,335,837 44.11

Faculty Services Revenue 1,412,589 1,412,589 0 0.00

State/Local Grants and Contracts 0 0 0

Auxiliary Enterprise Revenue 1,127,737 1,109,517 491,379 44.29

Operating Costs Revenue 147,418 137,596 0 0.00

Support Services Revenue 285,524 269,299 0 0.00

Other Operating Revenues 441,447 375,556 19,782 5.27

Total: 13,466,523 13,133,192 4,846,998 36.91

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 6,981,332 7,019,695 1,099,100 15.66

Benefits 1,562,905 1,527,285 222,236 14.55

Student financial aid-scholarships 140,844 146,844 114,627 78.06

Utilities 13,199 12,999 3,794 29.19

Supplies and Other Services 2,774,211 2,577,946 374,962 14.55

Equipment Expense 168,231 247,839 78,189 31.55

Loan cancellations and write-offs 0 0 0

Fees retained by the Commission 116,560 138,910 34,728 25.00

Assessment for Faculty Services 1,357,439 1,357,439 9,930 0.73

Assessment for Support Services 3,347,820 3,074,968 0 0.00

Assessment for Student Activity Costs 175,174 175,174 0 0.00

Assessment for Auxiliary Fees & Debt Service 1,127,737 1,109,517 0 0.00

Assessment for Operating Costs 2,198,885 2,196,366 (12,849) (0.59)

Total: 19,964,337 19,584,981 1,924,717 9.83

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) (6,497,814) (6,451,788) 2,922,281 (45.29)

NONOPERATING REVENUE State Appropriations 7,810,425 7,810,425 1,562,085 20.00

(EXPENSE) State Fiscal Stabilization Funds 0 0 0

Gifts 0 0 0

Investment Income 7,194 7,194 1,701 23.64

Assessment for E&G Capital & Debt Service Costs (1,539,782) (1,539,782) 0 0.00

Reappropriated State Funding 0 0 0

Total: 6,277,837 6,277,837 1,563,786 24.91

TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures 0 (56,929) (87,282) 153.32

Transfers for Financial Aid Match (61,006) (61,006) 0 0.00

Indirect Cost Recoveries 4,250 4,250 0 0.00

Transfers for Capital Projects (50,000) 0 0

Transfers - Other 0 1 1 100.00

One-time use of reserve 326,733 373,296 0 0.00

Total: 219,977 259,612 (87,282) (33.62)

BUDGET BALANCE 0 85,660 4,398,785

PERSONNEL BUDGET SAVINGS 0 0

PROJECTED EFFECT ON NET ASSETS AT JUNE 30 0 85,660 4,398,785

* Add: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 5,056,925 5,056,925

Less: USE OF RESERVE 326,733 373,296

Equals: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 4,730,192 4,769,289

         as the goal for the level of unrestricted net asset balance that should be maintained.

 *     Unrestricted Net Asset Balance is 27.37% of the current budgeted total operating expense. Management has established a target of 15% or $2,771,320

Pierpont Community & Technical College

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Current Unrestricted

 *    Projected Unrestricted Net Assets - Beginning of Year is after adding back the projected OPEB liability at June 30, 2013 in the amount of $3,255,697.

As of September 30, 2013

FZRPR03 Funds%

10/30/2013



Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current

Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Tuition and Fees 8,832,006 8,808,006 4,015,493 45.59

Faculty Services Revenue 1,412,589 1,412,589 0 0.00

State/Local Grants and Contracts 0 0 0

Operating Costs Revenue 147,418 137,596 0 0.00

Support Services Revenue 285,524 269,299 0 0.00

Other Operating Revenues 352,683 286,792 17,890 6.24

Total: 11,030,220 10,914,282 4,033,383 36.96

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 6,632,008 6,721,866 1,046,262 15.57

Benefits 1,509,007 1,480,416 214,211 14.47

Student financial aid-scholarships 140,844 146,844 113,127 77.04

Utilities 12,899 12,899 3,735 28.96

Supplies and Other Services 1,922,193 1,835,130 300,106 16.35

Equipment Expense 61,838 183,058 54,284 29.65

Loan cancellations and write-offs 0 0 0

Fees retained by the Commission 116,560 138,910 34,728 25.00

Assessment for Faculty Services 1,357,439 1,357,439 9,930 0.73

Assessment for Support Services 3,347,820 3,074,968 0 0.00

Assessment for Student Activity Costs 175,174 175,174 0 0.00

Assessment for Operating Costs 2,198,885 2,196,366 (12,849) (0.59)

Total: 17,474,667 17,323,070 1,763,533 10.18

OPERATING INOCME / (LOSS) (6,444,447) (6,408,787) 2,269,850 (35.42)

NONOPERATING REVENUE State Appropriations 7,810,425 7,810,425 1,562,085 20.00

(EXPENSE) State Fiscal Stabilization Funds 0 0 0

Gifts 0 0 0

Investment Income 7,194 7,194 1,701 23.64

Assessment for E&G Capital & Debt Service Costs (1,539,782) (1,539,782) 0 0.00

Reappropriated State Funding 0 0 0

Total: 6,277,837 6,277,837 1,563,786 24.91

TRANSFERS & OTHERS Capital Expenditures 0 0 (30,503)

Transfers for Financial Aid Match (61,006) (61,006) 0 0.00

Transfers for Capital Projects (50,000) 0 0

Transfers - Other 0 1 1 100.00

One-time use of reserve 277,616 277,616 0 0.00

Total: 166,610 216,611 (30,502) (14.08)

BUDGET BALANCE 0 85,660 3,803,133

* Add: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 4,329,289 4,329,289

Less: USE OF RESERVE 277,616 277,616

Equals: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 4,051,673 4,137,333

Pierpont Community & Technical College

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Current Unrestricted - President

 *    Projected Unrestricted Net Assets - Beginning of Year is after adding back the projected OPEB liability at June 30, 2013 in the amount of $3,255,697.

As of September 30, 2013

FZRPR03 Funds%

10/30/2013



Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current

Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Tuition and Fees 1,219,802 1,020,629 320,344 31.39

Other Operating Revenues 88,764 88,764 1,892 2.13

Total: 1,308,566 1,109,393 322,236 29.05

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 349,324 297,829 52,838 17.74

Benefits 53,898 46,869 8,026 17.12

Student financial adi - scholarships 0 0 1,500

Utilities 300 100 59 59.10

Supplies and Other Services 852,018 742,816 74,856 10.08

Equipment Expense 106,393 64,781 23,905 36.90

Loan cancellations and write-offs 0 0 0

Total: 1,361,933 1,152,394 161,185 13.99

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) (53,367) (43,001) 161,052 (374.53)

NONOPERATING REVENUE Gifts 0 0 0

(EXPENSE)

Total: 0 0 0

TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures 0 (56,929) (56,779) 99.74

Indirect Cost Recoveries 4,250 4,250 0 0.00

Transfers - Other 0 0 0

One-time use of reserve 49,117 95,680 0 0.00

Total: 53,367 43,001 (56,779) (132.04)

BUDGET BALANCE 0 (0) 104,272

Add: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 723,456 723,456

Less: USE OF RESERVE 49,117 95,680

Equals: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 674,339 627,776

Pierpont Community & Technical College

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Current Unrestricted - Fund Manager

As of September 30, 2013

FZRPR03 Funds%

10/30/2013



Tu
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 F

ee
s 

4
6

.9
0

%
 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

 R
e

ve
n

u
e

 
6.

74
%

 

A
u

xi
lia

ry
 E

n
te

rp
ri

se
 R

ev
en

u
e

 
5.

29
%

 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g 
C

o
st

s 
R

e
ve

n
u

e 
0

.6
6

%
 

Su
p

p
o

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

R
ev

en
u

e
 

1.
29

%
 

O
th

e
r 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g 
R

e
ve

n
u

e 
1

.7
9

%
 

St
at

e 
A

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

io
n

s 
37

.2
7%

 

In
ve

st
m

e
n

t 
In

co
m

e 
0

.0
3

%
 

In
d

ir
e

ct
 C

o
st

 R
e

co
ve

ri
e

s 
0

.0
2

%
 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

U
n

re
st

ri
ct

e
d

 R
e

ve
n

u
e

 B
u

d
ge

t 

Tu
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 F

e
es

Fa
cu

lt
y 

Se
rv

ic
e

s 
R

e
ve

n
u

e

A
u

xi
lia

ry
 E

n
te

rp
ri

se
 R

e
ve

n
u

e

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g 
C

o
st

s 
R

e
ve

n
u

e

Su
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
R

e
ve

n
u

e

O
th

e
r 

O
p

er
at

in
g 

R
e

ve
n

u
e

St
at

e
 A

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

io
n

s

In
ve

st
m

e
n

t 
In

co
m

e

In
d

ir
e

ct
 C

o
st

 R
ec

o
ve

ri
es



9,
82

8,
63

5 
 

1,
41

2,
58

9 
 

1,
10

9,
51

7 
 

13
7,

59
6 

 
26

9,
29

9 
 

37
5,

55
6 

 

7,
81

0,
42

5 
 

0 
 

0 
 

7,
1

9
4

  
0 

 
4

,2
5

0
  

4,
33

5,
83

7 
 

0 
 

49
1,

37
9 

 

0 
 

0 
 

19
,7

82
  

1,
56

2,
08

5 
 

0 
 

0 
 

1
,7

0
1

  
0 

 
0 

 
0

2,
00

0,
00

0

4,
00

0,
00

0

6,
00

0,
00

0

8,
00

0,
00

0

10
,0

00
,0

00

12
,0

00
,0

00

C
u

rr
en

t 
B

u
d

ge
t

 Y
TD

 A
ct

u
al

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

U
n

re
st

ri
ct

e
d

 R
e

ve
n

u
e

  
B

u
d

ge
t 

to
 Y

TD
 A

ct
u

al
 R

e
ve

n
u

e
 



Sa
la

ri
es

 
3

2
.4

7
%

 

B
en

ef
it

s 
7

.0
7

%
 

St
u

d
en

t 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 a
id

-s
ch

o
la

rs
h

ip
s 

0.
68

%
 

U
ti

lit
ie

s 
0

.0
6

%
 

Su
p

p
lie

s 
an

d
 O

th
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
11

.9
3%

 

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

E
xp

e
n

se
 

1
.1

5
%

 

Fe
e

s 
re

ta
in

e
d

 b
y 

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 

0
.6

4
%

 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

fo
r 

 F
ac

u
lt

y 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

6.
28

%
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

fo
r 

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
14

.2
3%

 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

St
u

d
en

t 
 A

ct
iv

it
y 

C
o

st
s 

0
.8

1
%

 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

fo
r 

A
u

xi
lia

ry
 

 F
ee

s 
&

 D
eb

t 
Se

rv
ic

e
 

5.
13

%
 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

fo
r 

 O
p

er
at

in
g 

C
o

st
s 

10
.1

6%
 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

E
&

G
 C

ap
it

al
 

 &
 D

e
b

t 
Se

rv
ic

e
 C

o
st

s 
7

.1
2

%
 

C
ap

it
al

 E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s 

0.
26

%
 

Tr
an

sf
e

rs
 f

o
r 

Fi
n

 A
id

 M
at

ch
 

0
.2

8
%

 
O

n
e

-t
im

e 
u

se
 o

f 
re

se
rv

e
 

1.
73

%
 

Sa
la

ri
es

B
en

ef
it

s

St
u

d
en

t 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 a
id

-s
ch

o
la

rs
h

ip
s

U
ti

lit
ie

s

Su
p

p
lie

s 
an

d
 O

th
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s

Eq
u

ip
m

en
t 

Ex
p

en
se

Fe
e

s 
re

ta
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

fo
r 

Fa
cu

lt
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

fo
r 

Su
p

p
o

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

fo
r 

St
u

d
en

t 
A

ct
iv

it
y 

C
o

st
s

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

fo
r 

A
u

xi
lia

ry
 F

ee
s 

&
 D

eb
t 

Se
rv

ic
e

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

fo
r 

O
p

er
at

in
g 

C
o

st
s

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

fo
r 

E&
G

 C
ap

it
al

 &
 D

eb
t 

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
o

st
s

C
ap

it
al

 E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
fo

r 
Fi

n
 A

id
 M

at
ch

O
n

e-
ti

m
e 

u
se

 o
f 

re
se

rv
e

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

U
n

re
st

ri
ct

e
d

 E
xp

e
n

se
 B

u
d

ge
t 



7,
01

9,
69

5 
 

1,
52

7,
28

5 
 

14
6,

84
4 

 

12
,9

99
  

2,
57

7,
94

6 
 

24
7,

83
9 

 
0 

 
13

8,
91

0 
 

1,
35

7,
43

9 
 

3,
07

4,
96

8 
 

17
5,

17
4 

 

1,
10

9,
51

7 
 

2,
19

6,
36

6 
 

1,
53

9,
78

2 
 

56
,9

29
  

6
1

,0
0

6
  

0 
 

1 
 

3
7

3
,2

9
6

  

1,
09

9,
10

0 
 

22
2,

23
6 

 
11

4,
62

7 
 

3,
79

4 
 

37
4,

96
2 

 

78
,1

89
  

0 
 

34
,7

28
  

9,
93

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

0 
 

(1
2,

84
9)

 

0 
 

8
7

,2
8

2
  

0 
 

0 
 

1 
 

0 
 

(1
,0

00
,0

00
)0

1,
00

0,
00

0

2,
00

0,
00

0

3,
00

0,
00

0

4,
00

0,
00

0

5,
00

0,
00

0

6,
00

0,
00

0

7,
00

0,
00

0

8,
00

0,
00

0

C
u

rr
en

t 
B

u
d

ge
t

YT
D

 A
ct

u
al

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

U
n

re
st

ri
ct

e
d

 E
xp

e
n

se
  

B
u

d
ge

t 
to

 Y
TD

 A
ct

u
al

 E
xp

e
n

se
 



New Grant Funds -                  

Other Grant/Restricted Fund Related Changes (20,667.90)      

FY 2014 Grant Revenue Budgets were reduced due to late Deferred Entries (20,667.90)      

updated for FY 2013 Audit

Net Change (20,667.90)      

Cash was moved from Deferred Revenue to Revenue in FY 13 which reduced

the revenue budgets in FY 14.  Revenue must be recognized in the year

in which the expense occurred.  There were late A/P entries hitting expense

that caused the revenue to be recognized in FY 13 rather than in FY 14

Pierpont Community and Technical College

Board of Governors

Financial Report

Restricted Funds

For the period ending September 30, 2013



Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current

Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Tuition and Fees

Federal Grants and Contracts 12,928,518 12,928,518 5,177,370 40.05

State/Local Grants and Contracts 4,144,425 4,119,904 1,075,598 26.11

Private Grants and Contracts 756,414 801,414 282,405 35.24

Other Operating Revenue 0 0 0

Total: 17,829,357 17,849,836 6,535,373 36.61

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 1,170,667 1,185,532 98,138 8.28

Benefits 124,698 134,344 16,672 12.41

Student financial aid-scholarships 23,573,120 23,573,120 8,953,052 37.98

Supplies and Other Services 534,686 521,499 91,623 17.57

Equipment Expense 426,435 442,039 35,393 8.01

Total: 25,829,606 25,856,534 9,194,878 35.56

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) (8,000,249) (8,006,698) (2,659,505) 33.22

NONOPERATING REVENUE Federal Pell Grant Revenues 8,000,000 8,000,000 2,962,069 37.03

(EXPENSE) Investment Income 0 (0) (0)

Total: 8,000,000 8,000,000 2,962,069 37.03

TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures (33,283) (53,283) 0 0.00

Transfers for Fin Aid Match 61,006 61,006 30,503 50.00

Indirect Cost Recoveries (1,104) 0 0

Transfers - Other 0 (1) (1)

Total: 26,619 7,722 30,502 395.00

BUDGET BALANCE 26,370 1,024 333,067 32517.49

* Add: PROJECTED RESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 1,568,792 1,568,792

** Equals: PROJECTED RESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 1,595,162 1,569,816

Pierpont Community and Technical College

Budget vs Actual Statement of Revenues and Expenses
Current Restricted 

For the period ending September 30, 2013

FZRPR03 Funds %

10/30/2013 Page 1



0

1
2
0
2
3
1
4
7

2
9
8
3
1
4
5

6
1
4
8
2
8
.9

4
8
8
5
6
2
.6

8
1
2
2
2
.2

3

2
1
1
9
1
2
6
5

2
2
7
4
5
9
.5

9
5
2
7
1
.4

1

6
7
4
6
2
1
6

Fe
d

er
al

 G
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 

49
.9

0%
 

St
at

e/
Lo

ca
l G

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

 
15

.9
0%

 

P
ri

va
te

 G
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts
 

3.
09

%
 

Fe
d

er
al

 P
el

l G
ra

n
t 

R
ev

en
u

es
 

30
.8

8%
 

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
fo

r 
Fi

n
an

ci
al

 A
id

 M
at

ch
 

0.
24

%
 

C
u

rr
en

t 
R

es
tr

ic
te

d
 R

ev
en

u
e 

B
u

d
ge

t 

Fe
d

er
al

 G
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts

St
at

e/
Lo

ca
l G

ra
n

ts
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

ac
ts

P
ri

va
te

 G
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
ac

ts

Fe
d

er
al

 P
e

ll 
G

ra
n

t 
R

ev
en

u
es

Tr
an

sf
er

s 
fo

r 
Fi

n
an

ci
al

 A
id

 M
at

ch



1
2

0
2

3
1

4
7

2
9

8
3

1
4

5

6
1

4
8

2
8

.9

4
8

8
5

6
2

.6

8
1

2
2

2
.2

3

2
1

1
9

1
2

6
5

2
2

7
4

5
9

.5

9
5

2
7

1
.4

1

6
7

4
6

2
1

6

12
,9

28
,5

18
  

4
,1

1
9

,9
0

4
  

8
0

1
,4

1
4

  

0
  

8,
00

0,
00

0 
 

61
,0

06
  

5,
17

7,
37

0 
 

1
,0

7
5

,5
9

8
  

2
8

2
,4

0
5

  

2,
96

2,
06

9 
 

30
,5

03
  

0

2,
00

0,
00

0

4,
00

0,
00

0

6,
00

0,
00

0

8,
00

0,
00

0

10
,0

00
,0

00

12
,0

00
,0

00

14
,0

00
,0

00

C
u

rr
en

t 
B

u
d

ge
t

YT
D

 A
ct

u
al

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

 R
e

st
ri

ct
e

d
 R

e
ve

n
u

e
  

B
u

d
ge

t 
vs

 Y
TD

 A
ct

u
al

 R
e

ve
n

u
e

 
 



1
2
0
2
3
1
4
7

2
9
8
3
1
4
5

6
1
4
8
2
8
.9

4
8
8
5
6
2
.6

8
1
2
2
2
.2

3

2
1
1
9
1
2
6
5

2
2
7
4
5
9
.5

9
5
2
7
1
.4

1

6
7
4
6
2
1
6

Sa
la

ri
es

 
4.

58
%

 
B

en
ef

it
s 

0.
52

%
 

St
u

d
en

t 
Fi

n
an

ci
al

  
A

id
-S

ch
o

la
rs

h
ip

s 
9

0
.9

8
%

 

Su
p

p
lie

s 
an

d
  

O
th

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

2.
01

%
 

Eq
u

ip
m

en
t 

Ex
p

en
se

 
1.

71
%

 

C
ap

it
al

  
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s 
0.

21
%

 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

 R
e

st
ri

ct
e

d
 E

xp
e

n
se

 B
u

d
ge

t 

Sa
la

ri
es

B
en

ef
it

s

St
u

d
en

t 
Fi

n
an

ci
al

 A
id

-S
ch

o
la

rs
h

ip
s

Su
p

p
lie

s 
an

d
 O

th
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s

Eq
u

ip
m

en
t 

Ex
p

en
se

C
ap

it
al

 E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s



1
2
0
2
3
1
4
7

2
9
8
3
1
4
5

6
1
4
8
2
8
.9

4
8
8
5
6
2
.6

8
1
2
2
2
.2

3

2
1
1
9
1
2
6
5

2
2
7
4
5
9
.5

9
5
2
7
1
.4

1

6
7
4
6
2
1
6

1
,1

8
5

,5
3

2
  

1
3

4
,3

4
4

  

23
,5

73
,1

20
  

52
1,

49
9 

 
44

2,
03

9 
 

53
,2

83
  

0
  

1
  

98
,1

38
 

16
,6

72
 

8,
95

3,
05

2
 

91
,6

23
 

35
,3

93
 

0 
0

 
1 

0

5,
00

0,
00

0

10
,0

00
,0

00

1
5,

00
0,

0
00

20
,0

00
,0

00

25
,0

00
,0

00

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

B
u

d
ge

t

YT
D

 A
ct

u
al

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

R
e

st
ri

ct
e

d
 E

xp
e

n
se

  
B

u
d

ge
t 

vs
 Y

TD
 A

ct
u

al
 E

xp
e

n
se

 



Tab 
6 



Board of Governors 

Pierpont Community & Technical College 

Informational Item 

September 21, 2013 

 

Presenter: 

Leslie Lovett, Provost & VP of Academic Affairs 

 

Subject: 

The Higher Learning Commission (HLC) Pathways Cohort 2, Quality Initiative Milestone Report 

 

Summary: 

Pierpont Community & Technical College was invited to join in the HLC Pathways Cohort 2 project and 

HLC Academy in November 2010 and was approved by HLC in December 2010. Although the projects are 

normally completed over a much longer time period in an annual 10 yr cycle for related to accreditation, 

the institutions in Cohort 2 are working under a compressed time period.   

 

Due to the date of our accreditation visit, Pierpont and WVUP are under an even tighter schedule. The 

Milestone Reports for our Academy work were due on October 31, 2013.  Pierpont has been working on 

two projects, Practical…Possible….General Education and Developmental Math Redesign.  The Report is 

included as an informational item. 

















































































Tab 
7  









Tab 
8 



Pierpont BOG November 2013 – Code Change Request – Per Credit Hour Tuition Page 1 

Pierpont Community and Technical College 
Board of Governors 
Meeting of November 19, 2013  

ITEM: Request a Code Change from the WV Legislature to 

Allow the Option of a Per Credit Hour Tuition and 

Fee Schedule  

COMMITTEE: Finance Committee 

RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION: Resolved, that the Pierpont Community & Technical 

College Board of Governors requests a legislative 

change in West Virginia State Code §18B-10-1. 

Enrollment, tuition and other fees at education 

institutions: refund of fees as suggested on page 2 

of the attached copy of WV Code to allow for the 

governing board of each community college to 

enact the tuition model most appropriate for their 

community of students.  

STAFF MEMBER: President Doreen Larson 

BACKGROUND: West Virginia State code currently prohibits 

charging students for credit hours beyond twelve. 

For many community colleges, this prohibition 

prevents implementation of flexibly and/or 

accelerated programming, severely burdens limited 

faculty and student service resources, and results in 

higher overall tuition rates.  

The WV Board of Governors Community College 

Chair Association in fall 2013 unanimously agreed 

to advocate for a change in the code language that 

would provide an option to charge tuition for every 

credit a student receives. Each local board will 

review their unique student demographics, funding 

sources and circumstances, and tuition rates to 

determine the model best suited for their institution 

and its students.  



1 
 

WEST VIRGINIA CODE 

CHAPTER 18B. HIGHER EDUCATION. 

ARTICLE 10. FEES AND OTHER MONEY COLLECTED AT STATE INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION. 

§18B-10-1. Enrollment, tuition and other fees at education institutions; refund of fees. 

     (a) Each governing board shall fix tuition and other fees for each academic term for the different classes or 

categories of students enrolling at the state institution of higher education under its jurisdiction and may include 

among the tuition and fees any one or more of the following as defined in section one-b of this article: 

     (1) Tuition and required educational and general fees; 

     (2) Auxiliary and auxiliary capital fees; and 

     (3) Required educational and general capital fees. 

     (b) A governing board may establish a single special revenue account for each of the following classifications of 

fees: 

     (1) All tuition and required educational and general fees collected; 

     (2) All auxiliary and auxiliary capital fees collected; and 

     (3) All required educational and general capital fees collected to support existing systemwide and institutional debt 

service and future systemwide and institutional debt service, capital projects and campus renewal for educational and 

general facilities. 

     (4) Subject to any covenants or restrictions imposed with respect to revenue bonds payable from the accounts, a 

governing board may expend funds from each special revenue account for any purpose for which funds were 

collected within that account regardless of the original purpose for which the funds were collected. 

     (c) The purposes for which tuition and fees may be expended include, but are not limited to, health services, 

student activities, recreational, athletic and extracurricular activities. Additionally, tuition and fees may be used to 

finance a students' attorney to perform legal services for students in civil matters at the institutions. The legal services 

are limited to those types of cases, programs or services approved by the president of the institution where the legal 

services are to be performed. 

     (d) By October 1, 2011, the commission and council each shall propose a rule for legislative approval in 

accordance with article three-a, chapter twenty-nine-a of this code to govern the fixing, collection and expenditure of 

tuition and other fees by the governing boards under their respective jurisdictions. 

     (e) The schedule of all tuition and fees, and any changes in the schedule, shall be entered in the minutes of the 

meeting of the appropriate governing board and the board shall file with the commission or council, or both, as 

appropriate, and the Legislative Auditor a certified copy of the schedule and changes. 

     (f) The governing boards shall establish the rates to be charged full-time students, as defined in section one-b of 

this article, who are enrolled during a regular academic term. 



2 
 

     (1) Undergraduate students taking fewer than twelve credit hours in a regular term shall have their fees reduced 

pro rata based upon one twelfth of the full-time rate per credit hour and graduate students taking fewer than nine 

credit hours in a regular term shall have their fees reduced pro rata based upon one ninth of the full-time rate per 

credit hour. 

     (2) Fees for students enrolled in summer terms or other nontraditional time periods shall be prorated based upon 

the number of credit hours for which the student enrolls in accordance with this subsection. 

 

    “(3) Community College students taking more than twelve credit hours in a regular term may be assessed 

an additional fee for each additional credit hour based upon the one twelfth calculation set out above.” 

 

     (g) All fees are due and payable by the student upon enrollment and registration for classes except as provided in 

this subsection: 

     (1) The governing boards shall permit fee payments to be made in installments over the course of the academic 

term. All fees shall be paid prior to awarding course credit at the end of the academic term. 

     (2) The governing boards also shall authorize the acceptance of credit cards or other payment methods which 

may be generally available to students for the payment of fees. The governing boards may charge the students for 

the reasonable and customary charges incurred in accepting credit cards and other methods of payment. 

     (3) If a governing board determines that a student's finances are affected adversely by a legal work stoppage, it 

may allow the student an additional six months to pay the fees for any academic term. The governing board shall 

determine on a case-by-case basis whether the finances of a student are affected adversely. 

     (4) The commission and council jointly shall propose a rule in accordance with article three-a, chapter twenty-nine-

a of this code defining conditions under which a governing board may offer tuition and fee deferred payment plans 

itself or through third parties. 

     (5) A governing board may charge interest or fees for any deferred or installment payment plans. 

     (h) In addition to the other fees provided in this section, each governing board may impose, collect and distribute a 

fee to be used to finance a nonprofit, student-controlled public interest research group if the students at the institution 

demonstrate support for the increased fee in a manner and method established by that institution's elected student 

government. The fee may not be used to finance litigation against the institution. 

     (i) Governing boards shall retain tuition and fee revenues not pledged for bonded indebtedness or other purposes 

in accordance with the tuition rules proposed by the commission and council pursuant to this section. The tuition rules 

shall address the following areas: 

     (1) Providing a basis for establishing nonresident tuition and fees; 

     (2) Allowing governing boards to charge different tuition and fees for different programs; 



3 
 

     (3) Authorizing a governing board to propose to the commission, council or both, as appropriate, a mandatory 

auxiliary fee under the following conditions: 

     (A) The fee shall be approved by the commission, council or both, as appropriate, and either the students below 

the senior level at the institution or the Legislature before becoming effective; 

     (B) Increases may not exceed previous state subsidies by more than ten percent; 

     (C) The fee may be used only to replace existing state funds subsidizing auxiliary services such as athletics or 

bookstores; 

     (D) If the fee is approved, the amount of the state subsidy shall be reduced annually by the amount of money 

generated for the institution by the fees. All state subsidies for the auxiliary services shall cease five years from the 

date the mandatory auxiliary fee is implemented; 

     (E) The commission or council or both, as appropriate, shall certify to the Legislature annually by October 1 the 

amount of fees collected for each of the five years; 

     (4) Establishing methodology, where applicable, to ensure that, within the appropriate time period under the 

compact, community and technical college tuition rates for students in all community and technical colleges will be 

commensurate with the tuition and fees charged by their peer institutions. 

     (j) A penalty may not be imposed by the commission or council upon any governing board based upon the number 

of nonresidents who attend the institution unless the commission or council determines that admission of 

nonresidents to any institution or program of study within the institution is impeding unreasonably the ability of 

resident students to attend the institution or participate in the programs of the institution. The governing boards shall 

report annually to the commission or council on the numbers of nonresidents and any other enrollment information 

the commission or council may request. 

     (k) Tuition and fee increases of the governing boards, including the governing boards of Marshall University and 

West Virginia University, are subject to rules adopted by the commission and council pursuant to this section and in 

accordance with article three-a, chapter twenty-nine-a of this code. The commission or council, as appropriate, shall 

examine individually each request from a governing board for an increase and make its determinations as follows: 

     (1) A tuition and fee increase greater than five percent for resident students proposed by a governing board 

requires the approval of the commission or council, as appropriate. 

     (2) A fee used solely for the purpose of complying with the athletic provisions of 20 U.S.C. 1681, et seq., known as 

Title IX of the Education Amendment of 1972, is exempt from the limitations on fee increases set forth in this 

subsection for three years from the effective date of the section. 

     (3) In determining whether to approve or deny a governing board's request for a tuition and/or fee increase for 

resident students greater than the increases granted pursuant to subdivision (1) of this subsection, the commission or 

council shall determine the progress the governing board has made toward meeting the conditions outlined in this 



4 
 

subsection and shall make this determination the predominate factor in its decision. The commission or council shall 

consider the degree to which each governing board has met the following conditions: 

     (A) Maximizes resources available through nonresident tuition and fee charges to the satisfaction of the 

commission or council; 

     (B) Consistently achieves the benchmarks established in the compact pursuant to article one-d of this chapter; 

     (C) Continuously pursues the statewide goals for post- secondary education and the statewide compact 

established in this chapter; 

     (D) Demonstrates to the satisfaction of the commission or council that an increase will be used to maintain high-

quality programs at the institution; 

     (E) Demonstrates to the satisfaction of the commission or council that the governing board is making adequate 

progress toward achieving the goals for education established by the southern regional education board; 

     (F) Demonstrates to the satisfaction of the commission or council that the governing board has considered the 

average per capita income of West Virginia families and their ability to pay for any increases; and 

     (G) Demonstrates to the satisfaction of the commission or council that base appropriation increases have not kept 

pace with recognized nation-wide inflationary benchmarks; 

     (4) This section does not require equal increases among governing boards nor does it require any level of 

increase by a governing board. 

     (5) The commission and council shall report to the Legislative Oversight Commission on Education Accountability 

regarding the basis for approving or denying each request as determined using the criteria established in this 

subsection. 

  

 


	September 2013 Combined Financial Report.pdf
	PR03 Narrative September 30, 2013
	FY14_PR03_Manual_PIERPONT_30SEP2013 - Rev
	PIERPONT_Restricted_ Manual-September 30, 2013 

	BoG QI Milestone Report 11-21-13.pdf
	BOG QI Cover sheet 11-21-13
	QI Report Pierpont C&TC WV

	November 13 - Request Code Change Per Credit Hour Tuition- BOG Action Item.pdf
	November 13 - Request Code Change Per Credit Hour Tuition- BOG Action Item
	WV CODE 18B -10-1




